5.1. PV¥0s have an infrastructure that reaches the grassroots.

5.2. Their long-standing relationships with indigenous
counterparts and with local communities make them ideal
for AIDS educatien with a2 human face.

. They have fewer bureaucratic hurdles to overcome and can
move more quickly and adjust more easily to ¢changes in the
lecal situation,

tn
(W)

5.4. They have a greater capability to innovate and to be
flexible in their approaches to AIDS controf.

5.5. They have a closer contact with the private sector.
6. THE OURGENCY OF RESPONDING TO THE AIDS ISSUE IN AFRICA
6.1. It mav still be possible to control AIDS at the "nodal

peints" of =pread, i.e. at the urban centers and small
tewns. It may be tee late after the next 1-2 years.

o
[ 1]

It may st1ll be poszible to prevent widespread social
disruption of families and disintegration cf local
communities. 1t may be toe late after 1-2 years.
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HEARINGS ON THE HIV PANDEMIC

9:05 a.m.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR GAULT: Good morning. Ladies and
gentlemen, distinguished guests, members of the President's
Commission, my name is Polly Gault. I am the designated federal
official here today and in that capacity it is my pleasure to
declare this meeting open. Mr. Chairman?

CHATRMAN WALSH: Thank you very much. Good morning.
This is our third day of hearings on the international
significance of the AIDS pandemic. As you know, our charge from
the President is that this Commission is to come up with a
significant set of recommendations, one of which is to give
guidance on the posture that we should take on the United States
role in the international pandemic.

We have heard from representatives of our government.
We have heard, of course, from WHO. Dr. Mann put on a masterful
presentation, I thought, to open this session. We have heard
from representatives of other countries abroad and we have heard
from private voluntary organizations and non-profit
organizations and foundations outlining what they consider their
role to be.

Today we are discussing another ramification of the
AIDS problem, and that is how these problems may affect the
security of the United States, what our options should be on the
movements of people across borders and we will be closing in the
afternoon on, once again, the important problem of international
drug trafficking and how this may affect the AIDS pandemic.

This morning, we are privileged to have with us
spokesmen from the Department of Defense who will address us on
the security question. Our first witness will be John F.
Mazzuchi who is the Acting Deputy Assistant Secretary for
Professional Affairs and Health Quality of the Department of
Defense here in Washington. Dr. Mazzuchi?

DR. MAZZUCHI: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Chairman
and members of the Commission, it is my distinct pleasure and
honor to appear before this Commission on behalf of the
Department of Defense, to lay out for you the current DOD policy
to deal with the problem of human immunodeficiency virus. I'a
like to point out that the written testimony that I have provided
to the members of the Commission discusses the current DOD
policy, a policy which has evolved since 1985 and a policy which
is in the stages of mandatory annual review, That policy is
being reviewed and coordinated within the Department now for any
changes. Therefore, my comments will be on the policy as it
exists today.
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My testimony goes right to the point and rather than go
over it at any length, I will simply summarize, if that's your
pleasure, some of the major aspects of the medical pieces of that
policy.

First of all, since 1985, October of '85, we have
screened all recruit applicants for military service for HIV.
Those who test positive are not eligible for military service.
Since 1986, we began a total force testing to screen our active
duty force for HIV. Those who are positive are given a full
medical evaluation. It 1s a rather extensive medical
evaluation. Those who are fit for duty remain in the military.
Those who are too ill to perform their duties would be separated
with a medical separation. For those individuals who remain,
because of the requirement to have an annual medical evaluation
of those service members, we keep them in the United States.
They are therefore not deployed outside of the United States.

HIV positive individuals receive full psychological
counseling, medical evaluation and support, preventive medicine
counseling on how this disease is transmitted and the modes of
keeping them from transmitting the disease. The Department also
has launched an aggressive education program with specific types
of messages and goals for various target groups, whether that be
commanders, health care professionals or the troops themselves,
We have made extensive use of existing media materials, whether
they be audio-visuals or print materials from the U.S. Public
Health Service.

The Department has medically discharged roughly 1,000
people since the inception of its testing program for HIV. Those
are the people who would not be physically able to continue in
the performance of their duties.

The Department's program also has a research element
which I believe you heard about extensively yesterday from
Colonel Bancroft and Colonel Burke. Basically our charge is to
do research on those aspects of this disease that would be of
particular relevance to military life. Because we have a
mandatory testing program and identify people prior to their
showing symptoms, methods of rapid identification and drug
therapies for the early stages of this disease are of particular
importance to the Department as well as epidemiological studies.

The Department has taken the stance that this disease
is terribly important and we need to protect people from
potential disciplinary action since two of the behaviors
associated with this disease, namely homosexual behavior and IV
drug use, are forbidden behaviors in the military. Therefore,
the very fact of positivity, being HIV positive, cannot be used
in any punitive way against an individual, nor can the
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information that the individual provides to the preventive

medicine counselor in an epidemiological evaluation be used in a
punitive fashion.

I think the program then has elements of both
identification, surveillance, education, treatment and research.
All of them have been ongoing, since 1986 and are under constant
review as new knowledge comes to the attention of the
Department. I believe I will conclude my testimony with that
since this basically covers, in very brief detail, the elements
of my testimony. I'd be pleased to answer your questions, or if
you want to get testimony from the next witness.

CHAIRMAN WALSH: Thank you, Doctor. Traditionally we
will ask the questions when everyone is finished. I notice that
you do have two associates with you. You are going to be welcome
to answer or participate in the question and answer session if
you have no direct testimony.

Our next witness is James Lamont, Assistant to the Director of
Foreign Military Rights Affairs, International Security Affairs,
the Department of Defense in Washington.

DR. LAMONT: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman and,
members of the Commission. I'm very much honored to be here this
morning and very gratified that you have seen fit to raise the
subject of the international security ramifications of the AIDS
pandemic, If I may, I would like to summarize my statement for
you, if I could ask that the statement itself be submitted for
the record.

As you know from what Dr. Mazzuchi has said, the AIDS
pandemic is of great concern to the Department of Defense and has
it has been for some time. However, not the only the medical
ramifications of AIDS are of great concern to us, but also the
international ramificatiens which is why I am particular
delighted to be here this morning.

I might point out that of course there are two sides to
this problem. The disease can be transmitted from foreigners to
members of the U.S8. forces, and can be transmitted from the U.S.
forces to host country nationals. These are two very separate
problems, very different in solution. I would like to treat them
one at a time for that reason,

I will begin by addressing the transmission of the
disease from foreigners to the U.S. forces. As you have heard
from Dr. Mazzuchi and others, our policies do not envision the
separation of our forces from the local populations overseas.
Instead, they involve the training of our forces to be prepared
to deal with situations in which transmission might occur. The
reasons for this policy approach are three-fold.
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First, as a practical matter, there may not be much
justification to keep a sailor out of Mombasa when he is
perfectly free to go about his business in San Francisco, New
York or Washington. Second, we have mutual defense commitments
overseas which we must fulfill and which we cannot fulfill
without substantial U.S. presence allied nations.

Third, in regard to nations which are friends but not
allies, maintaining that friendship requires contact, it
requires contact on an on-going basis, and withdrawal of contact
would send a negative signal which could be seriously detrimental
to cur future freedom of action.

Having said that, regarding the transmission of AIDS to
our forces, let me move on to what may be of greater interest to
you: the ramifications of possible transmission from U.S. forces
to host country nationals. The major difference here is that the
U.S. can implement military testing and assignment policies, as
Dr. Mazzuchi had pointed out, but cannot control or in some
cases even influence foreign controls which might be imposed.

This problem is exacerbated by the Soviet
disinformation campaign of the last several years. This has
claimed that the United States developed the virus originally for
use in bacteriological warfare, and more to the point here, has
also claimed that our forces overseas were heavily infected and
represented a present danger to the populations among which they
lived or spent leve time.

However, in fact, host countries have not acted to
1limit the presence of U.S. forces or to question our base rights
and access rights, with minor exceptions which I will mention in
a moment. The reasons for this, I think, are as follows. In the
first place, host countries have concerns, as we do, over mutual
security, and these concerns outweigh their fear of AIDS.
Second, our testing and assignment policies serve to reassure
foreign countries that we have taken all steps possible to
prevent transmission by our forces. This, I think, creates an
atmosphere in which they do not feel they need to take further
steps themselvs. Third, the fact that our forces are present
overseas defendng western security and are providing this
assurance of limited transmission capability allows host
countries to pursue policies essentially unrelated to defense or
to AIDS -- for example, a policy of free international travel,
which is of particular value to them in the economic sphere.

There are of course some foreign AIDS regqulations.
There are countries in the Middle East and Soviet Bloc, Jjust to
mention two areas, where this is true. However, with two
exceptions, such regulations have not impinged, even potentially,
on the freedom of movement of our forces.
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In Costa Rica, a regulation is in place affecting
commercial seamen and sailors. Its implementation is, however,
awaiting the completion of a Costa Rican government study of the
matter. At this point, I do not know when that study will be
completed.

The second exception is Egypt, where health
regulations regarding contagious and communicable diseases have
recently been expanded to include AIDS. These are now being
implemented in a limited manner with regard to certain of our
Department of Defense contract employees working on Egyptian
military bases.

The Department of Defense attitude toward foreign
regulations that might affect our entry or our residence in host
countries is, first of all, that all testing can be valuable in
the fight against AIDS. We've shown that attitude through our
own programs of testing and assignment.

Additionally, we believe wholeheartedly that every
nation has the right to set its own standards as to who enters
that nation and who lives there. It's a matter of sovereignty,
plain and simple.

However, we do have concerns regarding certain possible
aspects of foreign controls. One involves discrimination. 1If a
foreign regulation is aimed at United States nationals or, United
States forces and at no one else, for example, we wcould
seriously question the fairness of that regqulation unless
justified by very special circumstances.

A second concern involves sovereignty. For reasons of
sovereignty, we refuse to allow foreign inspections of our
military ships and aircraft, and we refuse to give specific
information on crew members.

A third concern involves security. We do not for

example give out lists of crew members for fear that these might
be used by potential terrorists.

Fourth, we are concerned about the medical safety of
local testing which may be required. There could be cases, where
local facilities would use the same needle for blood sampling
from one subject to another, which could serve as a means of
transmission of the disease.

Finally, we're concerned about the confidentiality of
test results. In many countries, standards of confidentiality,
frankly, do not match the standards which we in this country wish
for our service members who might be tested. Because of this, we
prefer, when faced with the possibility of a foreign testing
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regulation, to refer to a standard Department of Defense
statement summarizing our testing and assignment policies thereby
reassuring the foreign government that, in fact, we have done
everything possible, and that they can do little more to make
sure that their population is protected.

If I may summarize, Mr. Chairman, foreign worries about
AIDS, which of course are very well founded, have not, in fact,
been translated into regulations or controls which have affected
our military services. We have taken the policy decisions
necessary regarding our Armed Forces, and the result is that we
essentially go about our business just as we did previous to the
development of the AIDS pandemic. Obviously, a change in the
situation is possible. An AIDS-related incident, can occur at
any time, with ramifications for our services and their role
overseas. There could also be a general change in the foreign
approach to this precblem, although frankly we doubt that this
will occur because the same factors which have prevented it from
occurring in the past are still operative and still
determinative.

If foreign requlations are put in place, we will
conform to them. At the same time, we will request
consultations, and request that our views be heard on points of
concern to the Department of Defense such as those I have
ocutlined for you. Finally -- as Dr. Mazzuchi, I'm sure, will
confirm, the effectiveness of our deployable forces will be
maintained. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN WALSH: Do either Dr. Uddin or Dr. Peterson
have any direct statements that they are going to make?

CAPTAIN UDDIN: No.

CHAIRMAN WALSH: You're going to be available for the
question and answer period?

CAPTAIN UDDIN: Yes,.

CHAIRMAN WALSH: Well, I think it's only fitting that
we start our questions with Admiral Watkins. The Department of
Defense is, after all, something to which he is very close.

CHAIRMAN WATKINS: One of the concerns we had initially
was with some of the forces assigned to other nations where the
AIDS virus may have been transmitted to a foreign national
married to one of our members in uniform. I remember in the
early days, negotiations between our ambassador to Japan and
their prime minister, there was great concern during the testing
process that we may find not only positive sailors, which we did,
aboard the U.S.S. Midway, but we also found that on one occasion
one of those individuals was married to a foreign national.
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Could you give me a little rundown, Dr. Lamont, on how
big a problem is that within the military? Wwhat kind of
problems has that caused between host governments and the United
States government?

DR. LAMONT: I know of no examples in which this has
created problems. The number of cases of such a kind can only
have been very limited. I am not aware of any one which has
impinged on our foreign policy. Our policy in regard to
notification in such cases, is of course, a matter for my health
colleagues, but from my standpoint this has not been an
important.

CHAIRMAN WATKINS: What is the Costa Rican position at
this point in time regarding other individuals coming in and out
of Costa Rica, let's say Americans going to and from Costa Rica
by other means such as commercial aviation, from the United
States?

DR. LAMONT: There is no proklem there. Only two
specific groups are being checked. There is compulsory screening
in Costa Rica for students and applicants for residence. Beyond
that, no one is currently being subjected to any requirements.
The AIDS related requirements for commercial seamen and for
sailors are being held in abeyance pending the completion of a
government study of implementational methods, and we are not sure
at this point when that will be completed.

CHAIRMAN WATKINS: And so port visits have been
terminated until that's resolved, is that the idea?

DR. LAMONT: No, port visits are continuing as
normally planned.

CHATRMAN WATKINS: Thank you.

DR. LAMONT: Certainly, sir.

CHAIRMAN WATKINS: I'll have some more at the end.

CHAIRMAN WALSH: You'll have some later too, I'm sure.

We'll start with Dr. Crenshaw.

DR. CRENSHAW: In your military testing program for
those who are on active duty, I understand that patients, once
diagnosed or once tested positive, are sent to two hospitals in
the United States for follow-up evaluation and care. One is in
San Diego. I would like to know where the other one is and I'd
like you to tell me what the current figures are in San Diego,
how long they stay there and where in the United States they are
deployed after that.
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We have a bit over 700 local AIDS cases reported to the
Public Health Department. With only our public health care
reported cases, San Diego has the second highest incidence rate
of new cases in the nation. So, I'm real interested to know what
is happening as an impact of the military management of HIV
positives to the San Diego local community.

DR. MAZZUCHI: It is incorrect that there are only two
hospitals. There are a number of them. I'd have to get you a
list because there are more than ten hospitals. The services
have designated specific centers for staging and evaluation
because of the complexity of that process.

To date we have identified the rate per thousand
positive in our testing program and the force testing has been
completed. The rate is not quite 1.5 positives per 1,000. The
total number is roughly 4,000, the overwhelming majority of which
are HIV positive with either no symptoms or would be stage two
which would be seropositive plus lymphadencopathy. I don't have
specific figures at San Diego alone because we don't keep them
that way.

DR. CRENSHAW: Do you know approximately how long or an
average range of how long a patient is deployed to a hospital for
medical evaluation? I know that must depend on how severe --

DR. MAZZUCHI: 1It's approximately ten days.
DR. CRENSHAW: Thank you very much.
CHAIRMAN WALSH: Kris?

MRS. GEBBIE: I'm going tc ask my favorite question.
The other Commissioners will now all laugh. You make a very nice
presentation of things that sound very organized and very under
control. You know what you're doing. Our charge is to recommend
things that need to be changed or done differently in order to
accomplish what this country needs to do about the epidemic. Are
there things which this Commission could recommend or state that
would make your jobs within the Department of Defense easier?

DR. MAZZUCHI: Let me say that in terms of the overall
program that we have, I believe the Department has all that it
needs in the area of resources for its testing program, its
surveillance program, for treatment and for education.

I must say that I believe the Department of Defense
offers the nation a tremendous potential source of information
about this disease through its research efforts. We are, after
all, the only major organization that will have data on people
who will be positive and not have symptoms. Therefore, the
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epidemiological information that we are able to gather as well as
the potential to test drugs or treatments for people in early
stages I think is tremendously important for the nation.

I believe that the Commission can be most useful to the
Department in highlighting the opportunities that the Department
presents to the nation for research. Dollars are very difficult
to come by and certainly research dollars for HIV are in
competition with research dollars for other very important
diseases. So, whatever the Commission can do to highlight the
effort the Department is making on research and the parameters
that we have outlined in our pelicy would be most appreciated.

MRS. GEBBIE: Are there specific barriers to that
research being used or is it the concern that it is not well
enough supported and some opportunities are being lost?

DR. MAZZUCHY: Well, it's primarily a matter of
conflicting diseases competing for limited deollars. There are
many diseases that are of tremendous importance to the Department
of Defense. We have focused our HIV research effort on those
aspects of this disease that are most militarily relevant. At
the same time, I think a statement from the Commission on the
significance of this opportunity to the nation would be very
helpful to us.

MRS. GEBBIE: Thank you. Did you have any comments,
Dr. Lamont?

DR. LAMONT: If I wmay. In my own view, the most
important thing which the Commission might do is to increase the
awareness of foreign governments which might be considering the
institution of regulations or controls. That is, increase their
awareness of the five areas of concern which I referred to
before. If, in fact, they draft regulations that incorporate and
encompass those concerns, there should be no problem whatsoever
in us accepting them and cooperating fully. .

As it is, there's a potential, and I stress the word
"potential," for us to be required to discuss and possibly even
try to negotiate regulations which appear harmful to our
interests, from a security or a medical standpoint or from the
other standpecints which I mentioned.

MRS. GEBBIE: Since we really can't recommend things to
other governments, we can only recommend to our government, it
seems to me if we were to pursue that we would be recommending to
some appropriate branch of this government that it try to de that
with other countries. 1Is that the Department of State's role or
is that a role that Defense carries out directly with those other
governments?
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DR. LAMONT: I would suggest that the State Department
would have a major role in this.

MRS. GEBBIE: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WATKINS: Dr. Lamont, why can't Secretary
Carlucci write a note to Secretary Shultz and ask him to do the
same thing? Why do you need the Commission to support that? I
take it from your comment that you've tried it and failed.

DR. LAMONT: No, Admiral, that is not the case. We
have not needed to try it. This is, as a matter of fact, one of
the first times that the Department of Defense has highlighted
this particular aspect of the AIDS pandemic and its effect on us.

Up until now, we have been focusing largely on the
medical aspects of AIDS. Now we are starting to talk, and quite
rightfully so, about the international political aspects. I
agree with you. This could be a very good subject for our
Secretary to discuss with Secretary Shultz. Since, however, the
Commission was kind enough to ask what it might do, its widespead
influence also might be very useful.

CHAIRMAN WATKINS: I think for us to recommend
something that's within the purview of the Secretary of Defense
to do seems very simple. But I think another benefit might be to
highlight it to people such as Dr. Jonathan Mann of the World
Health Organization, to remind him of these areas of concern.
Hopefully he can influence through the World Health Organization
a more rational approach to the social aspects of this,

CHAIRMAN WAILSH: Burt, how about you?

DR. LEE: Are you testing the non-uniformed personnel?

DR. MAZZUCHI: At the moment, we are not. There is a
policy memorandum signed by the Deputy Secretary of Defense that
permits the testing as part of an overall physical examination
for new civilian hires for overseas areas very similar to the
testing program instituted by the State Department. We have an
aggressive testing program on a non-mandatory or on a voluntary
basis for people going overseas. We encourage them if they have
any reason to believe they need to be tested to do so because
they will become part of our medical system.

And, in additien, there is aggressive voluntary testing
offered for people who are not in uniform who present at either
drug/alcohol rehabilitation centers within the Department of
Defense or at sexually transmitted disease clinics. But it is
voluntary, not mandatory.
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DR. LEE: Dr,., Lamont, are you a Ph.D.?
DR. LAMONT: I am, sir.

DR. LEE: May I ask in what?

DR. LAMONT: Of course. History.

DR. LEE: History? And you're involved with security
affairs?

DR. LAMONT: That is correct.

DR. LEE: Other than finding out who's positive and
who's negative and taking care of that problem, why is AIDS
considered a security problem? Why do we get into that?

DR. LAMONT: 1It's considered a security problem for
two reasons. First, of course, is the effect on our forces of
the possible spread of the disease among them. If our forces are
sick and therefore undeployable, it weakens the entire security
structure of the United States.

Second however, and more to the point, is the fact
that, foreign countries may act against our best mutual security
interests for fear of an AIDS threat, whethr ral or perceived.
It is our goal to convince them, through such policies as our
testing and assignment policies, not to act irrationally, not to
over react to our presence or to our requests to visit those
countries. That could be very destructive to our international
security position and to theirs. We try to make that clear,
while at the same time recognizing, as I said, the value of
testing and the absolute sovereignty of foreign countries in
terms of their entry and residence requirements.

DR. LEE: I think your points are all extremely valid.
If I were doing it, knowing the number of non-uniformed personnel
on every base involving almost every aspect of military life, I
would personally test everybody who takes a job in the military,
wouldn't you?

DR. LAMONT: This is a subject of long-term
examination within the Defense Department. Dr. Mazzuchi
referred a moment ago to the procedures we're going through. The
Secretary of Defense has ordered that a study be made of the
civilian testing question.

My own particular part of the Defense Department, the
International Security Affairs part, does not have a direct role
at this a preliminary stage. But, of course, before a decision
is made, all aspects of this question must be examined, and
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conclusions reached on the basis of, legal, foreign relations,
medical and resource consideration.

DR. LEE: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN WALSH: Commissioner Primm?

DR. PRIMM: VYes. I had a couple of questions for Dr.
Lamont and Dr. Mazzuchi. Dr. Lamont, in one of those five
recommendations in your summary, you talk about security and
confidentiality. My concern is what are the confidentiality
standards governing reports of sero-positivity or sero-negativity
for that matter or evidence of drug use among military personnel?
Are there any? What are they? What are the penalties for those
persons who may violate those particular standards within the
military?

DR. LAMONT: Doctor, if I may, as far as your gquestion
to internal affairs of our own military, I would like to turn it
over to Dr. Mazzuchi who, is far more expert than I on this
point.

DR. PRIMM: My point is, one of your summary
recommendations certainly about security and confidentiality and
about our military personnel in relationship to a foreign nation
is well taken. I'm wondering, is that practiced internally
within the United States military itself, within the Defense
Department? I have reason to believe that that's not the case.
I'd just like to know what are those standards and are they being
abided by? 1If they're not, what are the sanctions?

DR. MAZZUCHI: I believe that issue really falls more
under the health jurisdiction, if I may answer, since you asked
internally to the Department. The Secretary's policy that was
issued by the Secretary of Defense himself in October 1985,
as well as the revised policy that was issued in April of 1987,
contain language that makes it quite clear that information is
not to be used in any punitive way.

Now, I recognize you're talking in terms of
confidentiality. The way that the policy in the service
regulations reads, the only people who are to be given this
information are people on a need to know basis. There is no
absolute confidentiality in the military. However, that is not
the same thing as to say that information can be thrown about
carelessly.

Therefore, if a person tests positive for this disease,
that information would be provided through the medical channels
because that person has to be brought to the hospital for
staging, et cetera. That person's assignment will have to be
limited to the United States and assignments people will have to
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know this person is at least limited in assignment. They would
not necessarily know the reason for it. That person's commander
may or may not need to know whether the individual is HIV
positive, based on nature of that individual's duties.

So, in terms of chain of command, there is no
confidentiality. In terms of public information, posting things
on bulletin boards, that would be behavior that would be
unacceptable.

The specific sanctions, there are no sanctions in our
policy for it. However, it would be a breach of both DOD policy
and service regulation that would be dealt with accordingly. In
my own experience in dealing with this problem and talking to
commanders in the field as well as to people who are HIV
positive, by and large the lack of confidentiality that exists,
exists for two reasons that have nothing to do with our policy.
First, those people who are positive frequently talk extensively
about their positivity because they are upset about it and they
do talk to friends. Once that happens, there's no way to control
the spread of information because people live in close quarters.

And secondly, the way we go about our testing program
would make it very difficult not to have some knowledge of
individual's positivity in this sense. If my unit is getting
ready to deploy and our testing program calls first for testing
for those people who are deploying or who might deploy, that's
the very first priority.

So, if I have a unit that is getting ready to deploy
and I do an HIV screen of the unit and then perhaps 72 hours
later the names of ten people are called to leave their unit and
go to, let's say, Walter Reed or San Diego or one of the many
other hospitals where we stage them, it doesn't take someone of
great intelligence to put two and two together and figure, "We
had the test 72 hours ageo. All of a sudden, these ten people are
leaving for a 10 day to two week period to a hospital. They must
be the ones that were positive." So, it's very difficult to have
the type of confidentiality that you're addressing.

Because of our concerns, the Department has taken the
position that, A, this information should only go on a need to
know basis through the chain of command, and B, no punitive
actions can be taken because of positivity. Therefore, again, we
do not discharge someone against his or her will. If they're
positive, we do not punish them with Article XVs or anything
under the uniform code. Punitive actions that would be
interpreted by the court, the court has given us a whole series
of what is and what is not punitive, it cannot be taken against
an individual because he or she is positive or because of the
types of behavior that person admits to in an epidemiological
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examination. We've taken that approach rather than the
confidentiality approach because of the very difficult way of
maintaining confidentiality in the military unit.

DR. PRIMM: In terms of contact tracing, those people
who are found to be positive, could you comment on that? What is
your policy? How is it carried out? What happens if it's
violated? There were some articles, as you know, yesterday inThe
Washington Post, in the health section, that talked about four
military personnel who are either being tried at this juncture or
some have been tried and adjudicated and are serving prison
terms. Some have plea bargained and gotten lesser terms, et
cetera. That report was there inThe Washington Post. Would you
comment on that?

DR. MAZZUCHI: VYes, sir, First, in terms of case
contact tracing, the policy that was issued in 1987 calls for
case contact tracing. We did not address that specifically in
the '85 policy.

Under the terms of the policy that was issued in '87,
case contact tracing occurs as part of th epreventive medicine
counseling for a member who is found to be HIV positive. That
counseling is performed by a health care provider, preventive
medicine physician or community health nurse, someone with
experience. It is in the context of, "This is a very dangerous
disease. We are doing everything possible to stem its spread.
One of the best methods that we have is to trace the contacts
that you've had either sexually or through IV drug use, or blood
donation, so that we can get to those people and offer them
counseling and testing."

So, the person 1s encouraged to provide that
information. The person is also told that that information is
confidential, that it would be done in two different ways. If
the person named as the contact is a beneficiary of our health
care system, Title X specifies who is entitled to care in the
military system, then we ourselves do it. We would have the
Preventive Medicine office contact the individual, simply tell
the individual that he or she has been named as someone who has
been in likely contact with an individual who is HIV positive and
offer the opportunity for counseling and testing. The case index
name is not provided.

If the individual named as the contact is not a
beneficiary of our health care system, then we provide the case
contact tracing through liaison with the local community public
health office. If I'm HIV positive and my contact is a resident
of Arlington, Virginia and not a military beneficiary, that
information would be passed on to the Arlington County Public
Health Office for that office to carry out the case contact
tracing. .
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DR. PRIMM: What then, Dr. -- I'm sorry.

DR. MAZZUCHI: Excuse me. If I might just address the
second part of your question.

DR. PRIMM: Surely.

DR. MAZZUCHI: 1In terms of the cases that are brought
to court, those cases are beyond information shared in terms of
case contact tracing or behaviors. Part of the DOD policy states
that an individual who is HIV positive, must be provided public
health counseling and preventive medicine counseling and told how
this disease is transmitted. They are told that if they continue
to engage in either IV drug use or any sexual practices, the
person needs to use a condom for sexual activity and the person
should not share any needles. Our policy does provide that if a
person refuses to obey that preventive medicine counseling, then
the person may be prosecuted.

DR. PRIMM: How do you monitor that, Dr. Mazzuchi?

DR. MAZZUCHI: Well, there is a case that I can use as
an example. I don't want to go into too much of the details of
the case because it is under litigation right now. But it
involved an individual who was positive, who was brought in for
oral counseling, was told about how this disease is transmitted,
was told to use a condom in any sexual activity and not to share
any needles, et cetera. This person later was found to have
impregnated his girlfriend. He was also found caught in oral
sodomy with a male, independent totally of our HIV program.

Both parties have stated that this person did not take any
precautions about the spread of this disease. Therefore, the
service has taken him to trial for not following the counseling.

DR. PRIMM: My concern is, how were these sexual
partners identified?

DR. MAZZUCHI: One was actually caught by the CID in a

DR. PRIMM: Compromised position?
DR. MAZZUCHI: Yes, sir.

DR. PRIMM: Do they follow these people who are HIV
positive?

DR. MAZZUCHI: No, they do not. As a matter of fact,
all of ocur --

DR. PRIMM: It's just by happenstance that this
occurred?
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DR. MAZZUCHI: Yes. We do not -- as a matter of fact,
we have talked extensively with our preventive medicine offices
and are quite satisfied that the atmosphere in which the
epidemiological evaluation is taking place is one that's very
medical. We do not find examples of CID or military police
lurking around hoping to catch people.

Quite frankly, the Department, I think, has enjoyed a
great deal of success in this program because of the medical cast
we have put on it. If you will look back at my written
testimony, we treat HIV seropositive as we would treat any other
disease. We have not invented a new superstructure for it. We
have used existing superstructures dealing with diseases and
health conditions, both in terms of getting into the military and
staying in the military. We treat this as we would treat any
other chronic or contagious disease.

DR. PRIMM: My concern though is that there possibly
should be some policy that would have sanctions for people
talking about others sero-positivity. We have gotten anecdotal
reports here at the Commission where a sergeant has seen another
sergeant who might have been HIV positive with a lady and then
reports that to the company commander and then the commander
calls in the HIV positive person and they are court martialed, et
cetera, et cetera.

I think that unquestionably there ought to be some
sanctions for individuals who violate the confidentiality, of a
medical diagnoses, of either intravenous drug use or indeed HIV
seropositivity which could be terribly damaging to that
individual's existence within that unit or even when he returns
to civilian life. I think it's a serious, serious kind of issue.

DR. MAZZUCHI: We agree with you that confidentiality
in terms of offering people the kind of counseling and treatment
is necessary and that punitive actions as a threat would hurt our
efforts to stem the spread of this disease.

Quite frankly, I have not heard the type of anecdote
that you have brought to our attention because by and large we
have found that people who are HIV positive are really not being
harassed by any law enforcement type individuals. Those cases
that have come to court have been fairly flagrant violations of
the preventive medicine counseling and people were caught
entirely independently.

We have tried to base much of this program on our
experience with the amnesty program, or the exemption program as
it later became called, after the Vietnam war dealing with drug
abuse. We did the same thing. People who came in and sought
help were provided help and we did not have a punitive

342



atmosphere at all. But that did not protect them, for instance,
from independent investigations so that a person came in and
said, "I have a heroin habit," or whatever the drug happened to
be, we would offer that person treatment. But if that person was
busted by CID in a drug raid, the person can't say, "I went for
help and therefore you can't touch me."

I think that's the other side of the coin that we have
to be careful of here. We are trying to offer protection for
people in a health care atmosphere, but we do not want them to
feel that because they've been identified in the manner of a
health screen that therefore they have the protection to engage
in unsafe practices flagrantly with impunity.

DR. PRIMM: Thank you.

CHATRMAN WALSH: Cory? J

DR. SerVAAS: I agree with you that this information
you're getting, Dr. Lamont and Dr. Mazzuchi, is very valuable
information about the spread of AIDS. I wonder if you could tell
us how much you know about the spread in the 17, 18 and 19 year
olds you've tested. We want to know more about the
seropositivity among our young people. We haven't very much
information about that.

DR. MAZZUCHI: Right now we have gathered information
on rates of positivity by the entire force bhecause it took us
approximately two years to complete that testing. We do not at
the moment have data broken down specifically by age group. We
will very shortly.

We now have an automated database, what we refer to as
the reportable disease database that will have demographic
information where we have linked the positive individual back to
a personnel file where we can get the type of demographics that
might lead to that type of analysis. That is expected very
shortly. We do not have specific data yet factoring out 18 year
olds or 17 year olds from the rest of the force. We simply have
information on the total force testing.

The information that would be available from the
recruit applicant testing, we have made available to the Centers
for Disease Control and I know that some of the research being
carried out at WRAIR, the Walter Reed Army Research Institute,
which has some analysis of those data. What those data can tell
us about the country is questionable at the moment because there
are so many intervening variables that we're not able to factor
out. For instance, how generalizable is this population? People
would self select into applying for military life. Would those
people be the American population at large? I really couldn't
-nswer that gquestion.
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This is the kind of information we want to glean from
our database. Now that we have the base line data, we will be
looking at it, from the various demographic variables. When we
repeat the force testing, which will be repeated over
approximately a two year period, we will be able to get some
incidence data. We do not yet have incidence data, since the
first objective was to get all the active force tested at one
time.

DR. SerVAAS: How long before that is published? Do we
need to wait until it's in the professional journals and do the
professional journals always publish? Is the peer review process
going to be dangerously long that we could be using this
information? ]

DR. MAZZUCHI: Well, I think a good deal of data have
been published, but information has been slow in coming because
of the need to get sufficient data to publish. We have had about
a two year experience now in the recruit applicant data. So I
believe now we can begin to publish data. That institute is a
research institute where people are devoted to that activity. So
I would assume that more and more publications will be
forthcoming. I think your peints are very well taken. We are
also concerned about the need to get data into the peer review
Journals. I believe the time is just approaching now where we
have a sufficient database to begin collating, analyzing data and
presenting just what you hope to see.

DR. SerVAAS: Dr. Lamont, would you have any more
information about the military recruits from Walter Reed?

DR. LAMONT: I'm sorry I don't. That is not my field.

DR. SerVAAS: Well, I have a little intelligence and I
could hardly sleep last night for the information that it gave
about teenage prevalence, as high as 4.9 out of 1,000 in some
counties, 17, 18 and 19 year oclds. We were told in earlier
testimony that there are about 600,000 of these 17, 18 and 19
year olds that were tested. So, it's a large body of information
that is very much needed in the counties where it has been
separated out.

DR. MAZZUCHI: VYes, I agree with you again. Part of
the difficulty we have -- and we certainly want to share our
information nationally, but we have to also be very careful
within our Department when we publish data, particularly on
recruit applicants and again caution that these are not
necessarily representative of the United States at large because
I am sure there are pockets of individuals whose prevalence rate
must be much higher than we are experiencing.
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Again, we have an announced testing program. People
who do apply to the military usually know in advance they will be
tested. Therefore, we must assume that there's some selecting
out of individuals. In addition, people who would choose a
military career may or may not be representative of the
population at large.- So,~ I hope that we can get data published
because it is positive data. The other side of the coin,
however, is that our data will not necessarily be representative.
It will probably be an underestimate in certain pockets, at least
within our population.

DR. SerVAAS: Ah underestimate of the number of total -

DR. MAZZUCHI: The sero-prevalence rate, yes, within
certain subcultural groups. ~

DR. SerVAAS: Would you be getting any young pecple
because they want to be tested? Do you have different policies
in different states -- \

DR. MAZZUCHI: No.

DR. SerVAAS: -- of how you handle the 17 year old kid
who comes in and you need to tell him that he's positive for the
AIDS virus? \

DR. MAZZUCHI: No. We would have the same policy in
all of our military entrance processing stations. People would
come in regardless of what state they're from and would be
processed in exactly the same way. The mechanism is the same.

And again, we have seen a small decline in the rate per
thousand positive of our recruit applicants starting off at about
1.5 per thousand and now down to a little bit under 1.4 per
thousand. It's very difficult for us to know what that
represents because, again, we have nothing to compare it to. We
have no way of knowing what that represents, is probably the
safest way for me to say that scientifically. \

DR. SerVAAS: We were told by the Commissioner for the
state of Colorado, Dr. Tom Vernon, that he takes all of your
positive AIDS personnel who are rejected by the military and they
counsel these people and really take good care of them. I
wondered how much you know about the procedures in other states -
- I worry about a 17 year old kid going in and finding out and
then having any drop off because you're not allowed to follow up
and see that he's taken care of with a physician. Do some states
not have that policy that they have in Colorado?

DR. MAZZUCHI: 1It's my understanding that that's
pretty uneven, that there are states that do a superb job and
states that do not. We do not simply wash our hands of the
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individual, but we are precluded from doing very much with them.
Consequently, we have the person who is positive being notified
by a physician. We try to make liaison with the local public
health office. Again, the quality of follow-up really does
depend on the local public health office. I think things are far
better now than they used to be. I think the country as a whole
is simply much more informed about this disease, but I cannot say
that every single state and every single local public health
office is as good as the best. They're not.

DR. SerVAAS: Well, is this something that our
Commission could recommend in our report, that the young people
who are rejected by the military, that the states all have a
policy of routinely taking up these kids and getting them to
care promptly?

DR. MAZZUCHI: Well, I think it would be an excellent
recommendation of the Commission, but again it would be a
recommendation to the sovereign states which would have to
decide what to do about that. I think this is a growing problem
not only for our own particular military recruit applicants but
for anyplace in the state where someone is identified positive.
Obvinusly the better the public health office is at dealing with
this problem, the better for the individual living in the state.

CHAIRMAN WALSH: Cory, I think Beny has a related
question.

DR. PRIMM: You did state that some of the recruit data
may not be reflective of what's really going on in communities,
but it does give us somewhat of a handle and an idea because as
far as black and Hispanic youngsters, the ones that are
volunteering for the service are generally the cream of the crop
of our neighborhoods. They are graduates of high school, they
are generally not drug users and supposedly not exhibiting
homosexual/bisexual behavior. Those are the criterion, if I'm
not mistaken. So, we have about 45 to 55 to 60 percent dropouts
in our inner city area. So those youngsters that would come to
the Army to volunteer, or come to the Armed Services, are
ungquestionably the cream of the crop because 65 percent of those
who drop out go on to continue to use drugs.

So, my point is that that data is absolutely necessary
to be publicized, particularly in the minority community, to let
the leaders out there know that these are the stats that we're
finding on the cream of the crop of the youngsters from this
community. Therefore, it might portend something else for the
total community.

i'd like further to state that even in the Army itself

where 4.7 of every 1,000 active duty Army personnel examined that
were black were positive for the virus, men and women. I think

346




that is a startling statistic. Among your Army Officer Corps,
black officers, 5 out of every 1,000. Now, that, to me, is one
in 200 and that is terribly, terribly, terribly startling and
ought to be publicized so that the denial that goes on in the
minority communities of this nation would be stopped on the basis
of that kind of data. If they were no longer married, 6.6 out of
every 1,000 and 7 out of every 1,000 Hispanics. That's
incredible to me and that's is enlisted personnel.

So, my point is that the Defense Department has, I
think, sort of a corner on the market on sero-prevalence studies
of the population, though it might be limited. But it is the
only one that we have to look at, except for the studies on
pregnant women in New York, babies being born in New York.

DR. MAZZUCHI: Yes, sir, I could not agree with you
more, especially your conclusion that we are probably showing a
tremendous under representation of sero-prevalence in certain
communities, particularly among blacks and Hispanics. That is
one of the reasons that I encourage as much as I possibly can
this Commission to make that point and to support the
Department's efforts on epidemiological research.

DR. PRIMM: But beyond that, Dr. Mazzuchi, and one last
comment. Greed has sort of seized me when the military people
come here. It's because it's close to me. I was responsible for
the testing that was done in Vietnam, setting up the urinalysis
testing during the Vietnam situation, Dr. Jaffe and I.

DR. MAZZUCHI: VYes, sir, I was even there at that
time.

DR. PRIMM: I'm very aware of what goes on. So, it's
close to my heart. I'm not doing it to be critical. I'm doing
it because the military has played a tremendous role in terms of
epidemioleogical problems since the very beginning of time in this
nation and for public health. So that's why I'm about this.

I'm about it also because you all now are keeping
things too close to your vest and for too long. And then there's
a six or eight month lag time before we get the information that
we could have been acting on and perhaps some lives could have
been saved. That's another great concern of mine that I
expressed yesterday.

DR. MAZZUCHI: I understand, Dr. Primm, your point and
I don't dispute it. But I do want to say that one of the
reasons that much of the information has not been shared is not
because of a desire by the Department to hold onto it, but
namely for a desire by the Department to have more complete
information.
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We have spent a great deal of time trying to put
together a mechanism such as the reportable ‘disease database that
will give us the type of information that you wanted. Since the
original testing program started for the active force, our main
goal was to get the testing done, to have it done properly, to
get those people into treatment or staging and the information
part was, I admit, lagging behind. But that program was 4
logistically extremely difficult to do.

Having now gotten all of the data and having gotten a |
mechanism put together to be able to bounce sero-positives
against a personnel database for the demographics that are so
important to the type of epidemiological analysis that you are
loocking for, we are now just on the threshold. We expect to be
publishing -- first of all to be analyzing the data along lines
that would have some relevance, not only to us but to the nation
as a whele, and secondly to be able to publish it. 8o, it is not
a desire of the Department to hold the information back, but
merely to get the information collected fully first so we could
then begin teo analyze it. I think you can expect and have every
right to expect to see more of those pieces of data coming out
within the next year.

DR. SerVAAS: Dr. Mazzuchi, do we know how many West
Point cadets or how many midshipmen at Annapolis were AIDS
positive when we tested them?

DR. MAZZUCHI: We would be able to get that
information. We don't routinely have it. We'd have to go back
into the data files and find the location of the person. It's
possible to find that out. We do not have it available readily
now, no.

DR. PRIMM: Were there some?

DR. MAZZUCHI: I couldn't tell you whether there were
or not. It is part of the testing program. It's certainly
theoretically possible there was. None have come to my
attention.

DR. SerVAAS: But we do test them?

DR. MAZZUCHI: Yes, we do.

DR. SerVAAS: When they go in?

DR. MAZZUCHI: Yes, we do.

DR. SerVAAS: Do you think this peer review, which is
so very important to professionals -- we have to wait until it
gets sent to several places and then it's their discretion of
whether or) not they want to use it in the New England Journal or
the JAMA or wherever. Since it's kind of a war to get action
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so that as other federal agencies make theirs you're not tripping
over each other, at least you know what each other is doing?

And secondly, where you may have some somewhat unique
viewpoints that need to get into that international discussion,
is that mechanism through our public health agencies
appropriately structured right now?

DR. MAZZUCHI: I can honestly state that in my 16
years in federal service I have never seen better ccordination
than on the issue of the AIDS epidemic. Our internal department
committees, and we have a number of them, each one has
representation from the Public Health Service as well as other
federal agencies and the Department of Defense is well
represented on nearly every HHS public health service committee.
We have worked very closely together in both research and in
education and in testing methodology.

Our scientists and physicians have taken a very active
role in representing the national interests, representing policy
views, et cetera. We have participated with the National Academy
of Sciences and with the World Health Organization in looking at
issues such as the neurological impairment, early neurological
impairment of a symptomatic HIV positives.

So, from my perspective, the level of coordination is
quite high and I believe that DOD personnel particularly in the
research community are well represented in the American
scientific community and have participated very actively
throughout a number of forums.

MRS. GEBBIE: What about the input on issues that might
be going to World Health, that connection where there might be an
international concern that you would have?

DR. MAZZUCHI: Well, again, I think in terms of
sharing information and working with the World Health
Organization, we've done quite well, 1If you're talking in terms
of international relationships, if that's your area, that I
really couldn't address. But certainly on the health side,
research side, the significance of other retro-viruses in Africa,
or neurological impairment of seropositive individuals, and
testing methodologies, in false positivity rates and so forth,
we've had a great deal of play with the World Health Organization
in those areas.

MRS. GEBBIE: Well, this is really a follow-up to the
gquestion that Admiral Watkins asked earlier. If getting some
kind of common international policy on these things is
appropriate, why hasn't somebody asked for it? My question is
directed at were you to say that was important to the Department
of Defense, you wish it to be part of an official United States

350




representation to the World Health Organization so that they
could take some leadership on this, is there avenue there for you
to pursue that?

DR. MAZZUCHI: I'm sorry, I didn't understand the
exact point of your question before. I don't believe it has been
tried yet. I really.don't know. That is not an avenue that we
have pursued within our office. That is certainly one that ought
to be pursued.

DR. LAMONT: If I might, I would like to comment on
this from my own perspective. Our natural interest here is in
dealing with the State Department and with the other foreign
affairs agencies, and also with certain of our embassies overseas
if problems appear to be arising in a specific country. All of
these channels have been working very, very well. There has been
no problem that we've experienced, and cooperation has been
excellent.

MRS. GEBBIE: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN WAILSH: Dr. Crenshaw?

DR. CRENSHAW: You've been under fire, the Department
of Defense, for your testing programs and for many of the early
measures that you introduced to the management of the AIDS
epidemic within the military. There were scme rough spots in the
beginning, as I recall. But while it's not so popular in our
society to compliment the military, I must tell you that issues I
think are not brought up very often, particularly the fact that
you've preserved jobs for the gay community within the military,
an issue that is particularly historically difficult for the
military to deal with., I think you've done a commendable job and
I think you've put many of the civilian facilities and
industries to shame in that respect.

I also think you're providing a service we have not yet
succeeded in doing in civilian life which is treatment and
medical care, not only for those that you diagnose within the
service who have AIDS but for those who are HIV positive and
you're consequently extending life and preserving the quality of
life through your medical care. I never hear this talked about.
I hear the criticisms. But I feel compelled to bring it up
because I think it's terribly important and a very good role
model for society at large.

Then thirdly, I'd like to tell you how much I
personally, and observe many other scientists, depend on the data
that you've collected through your testing program because of the
voids in other areas. So, thank you. And especially thank you
for what you're learning about our teenagers so that we can do
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